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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF WEST VIRGINIA

(Martinsburg Division)

ELECTRONICALLY
FILED

ANNA COBERLY and JAMES M. Nov 14 2016
STEVENS, individually and on U.S. DISTRICT COURT
behalf of others similarly situated, Northern District of WV

Plaintiffs,

v. Civil Action No. 1:16-CV-216 (Keeley)

ECM ENERGY SERVICES, INC.
and HENRY WAHL,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

NOW COME Plaintiffs Anna Coberly and James M. Stevens, by and through their

undersigned counsel, and file this Complaint against Defendants ECM Energy Services, Inc. and

Henry Wahl, makin claims to recover unpaid minimum wages and unpaid overtime wales

under the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S.C. 201 et seq., individually and on behalf

of others similarly situated as provided in 29 U.S.0 216(b), and seeking a declaration under the

Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201, that the mandatory arbitration provision and

waiver of class and collective actions in the arbitration agreements between Plaintiffs and

similarly situated employees and Defendants are unconscionable and unenforceable, stating as

follows:

PARTIES

Plaintiff Anna Coberly ("Plaintiff Coberly") is an individual residing in

Shinnston, Harrison County, West Virginia.
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2. PlaintiffJames M. Stevens ("Plaintiff Stevens") is an individual residing in

Grafton, Taylor County, West Virginia.

3. Defendant ECM Energy Services, Inc. ("Defendant ECM") is a coiporation

organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware, authorized to do business in the State of

West Virginia.

4. Defendant ECM has a principal office located at 130 Court Street, Williamsport,

Pennsylvania 17701, and a place of business at 99 Pallet Street, Bridgeport, West Virginia

26330.

5. Defendant ECM is an energy services company focused on natural gas and oil

trucking and water logistics, specializing in the deployment ofwater trucks and traffic cars for

natural gas and oil drilling operations, and providing traffic control, water manifold management

and lime kiln distribution services throughout Pennsylvania, Ohio, and West Virginia.

6. Defendant Henry Wahl ("Defendant Wahl") is the Chief Executive Officer,

President, and Owner of Defendant ECM.

7. Defendant Wahl at all relevant times, has had extensive managerial

responsibilities and substantial control of the terms and conditions of the work ofPlaintiffs and

similarly situated employees including, without limitation, hirina and firing employees, setting

schedules, setting employees' pay rates, and directing the daily operations ofDefendant ECM.

8. At all relevant times, Defendants were acting through their agents, supervisors,

directors, officers, employees and assigns, and within the full scope of such agency, office,

employment, or assignment.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' claims under the Fair

Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S.C. 201 et seq. ("FLSA") pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1331

because these claims arise under the laws of the United States.

10. This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' request for a declaration under the

Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201 because there is an "actual controversy" within

this Court's jurisdiction, i.e. Plaintiffs' claims under the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29

U.S.C. 201 et seq., for this Court to decide.

11. At all relevant times, Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees were employees

of Defendants and worked from Defendants' West Virginia facilities.

12. Venue is appropriate in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of West

Virginia pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 1391(h) because Defendants reside in this judicial district and a

substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to Plaintiffs' claims occurred in this

judicial district.

FACTS

13. Plaintiff Coherly worked for Defendants as a "traffic employee" from

approximately March 7, 2015 until approximately October 24, 2015.

14. Plaintiff Stevens worked for Defendants as a "traffic employee" from

approximately November 1, 2011 until approximately April 25, 2015.

15. Defendants treated Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees as "non-exempt"

employees under the FLSA and do not contest Plaintiffs' and similarly situated employees'

entitlement to minimum wage and overtime wages for hours worked over 40 hours in a

workweek pursuant to the FLSA.
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16. During the relevant time period, Defendants paid Plaintiffs and similarly situated

employees a "day rate" for each day of work by Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees.

Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees received no wages in addition to the "day rate."

17. The U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division ("DOL") conducted an

investigation of Defendants and its pay practices in connection with their "traffic employees"

during the period from May 11, 2014 to January I, 2016.

18. The DOL concluded in its investigation that Defendants had failed to pay

Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees all the minimum and/or overtime wages to which

Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees were entitled.

19. The DOL concluded in its investigation that Defendants owe 68 "traffic

employees" in West Virginia a total of $169,069.43 in back wages.

20. The DOL concluded in its investigation that Defendants owe 34 "traffic

employees" in Pennsylvania a total of S35,761.52 in back wages.

21. The DOL concluded in its investigation that Defendants owe 55 "traffic

employees" in Ohio a total of $181,986.30 in back wages.

22. Plaintiff Coberly received a letter dated July 19, 2016 from the DOL stating

Defendants owe Plaintiff Coberly $4,458.84 in unpaid minimum wages or unpaid overtime

wages.

23. Plaintiff Stevens received a letter dated July 27, 2016 from the DOL stating

Defendants owe Plaintiff Stevens $3,248.58 in unpaid minimum wages or unpaid overtime

wages.
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24. At approximately the same time as the letters from the DOL to Plaintiffs, the

DOL sent similar letters to Defendants' "traffic employees" similarly situated to Plaintiffs stating

amounts owed by Defendants to the similarly situated employees.

25. Defendants purportedly required Plaintiffs and at least some similarly situated

employees to sign agreements as a condition of employment which provide that any claims

arising from Plaintiffs' or the similarly situated employees' employment must be submitted to

binding arbitration as the exclusive remedy.

26. Despite a request by Plaintiffs' counsel on or about October 4, 2016 for complete

and executed copies of any arbitration agreements purportedly entered into by Plaintiffs,

Defendants have not provided complete and executed copies of any arbitration agreements.

27. Defendants have provided to Plaintiffs' counsel an unsigned copy of a "Mutual

Agreement to Arbitrate Claims" which Defendants contend is an example of the arbitration

agreements executed by Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees.

28. The example of the arbitration agreement provided by Defendants is silent or

ambiguous with regard to whether Plaintiffs and the similarly situated employees must pay a

portion of the arbitrators' fees.

29. The example of the arbitration agreement provided by Defendants further

provides that the employees waive their right to bring, maintain, participate in, or receive money

from any class, collective, or representative action, whether in court or arbitration.

(Similarly Situated Employees)

30. During the relevant time period, Defendants employed approximately 150 "traffic

employees" in West Virginia, Pennsylvania, and Ohio, who performed the same or materially
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similar duties as Plaintiffs and who were paid in the same manner as Plaintiffs, i.e. a day rate for

all hours worked in each work day, without any overtime wages.

31. During the relevant time period, Defendants failed to pay the similarly situated

employees all of the minimum wages and/or overtime wages to which the similarly situated

employees were entitled.

COUNT ONE: CLAIM FOR UNPAID WAGES AND UNPAID OVERTIME WAGES
UNDER THE FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT

32. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 through 31 of this Complaint as if

fully set forth herein.

33. Each Defendant is an "employer" as defined in the FLSA at 28 U.S.C. 203.

34. Defendant ECM is an "enterprise engaged in commerce" as defined in the FLSA

at 28 U.S.C. 203.

35. Defendant Wahl at all relevant times, has been an owner and araent of Defendant

ECM, had extensive managerial responsibilities and substantial control of the terms and

conditions of the work of Plaintiffs, and all similarly situated employees, and consequently, is an

"employer" under the FLSA.

36. Defendants were required to pay Plaintiffs, and all similarly situated employees,

minimum wages and overtime wages at a rate of one and one-half times Plaintiffs' and the

similarly situated employees' regular rates for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a work

week pursuant to the FLSA, 28 U.S.C. 207.

37. Defendants failed to pay Plaintiffs and all similarly situated employees all wages

and overtime wages due and owing to Plaintiffs and the similarly situated employees in violation

of the FLSA, 28 U.S.C. 207.
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38. Defendants' failure to pay wages and overtime wages in violation of the FLSA

was willful.

COUNT TWO: REQUEST FOR DECLARATION THAT THE ARBITRATION
PROVISIONS AND WAIVER OF COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTIONS
BETWEEN PLAINTIFFS, SIMILARLY SITUATED EMPLOYEES AND

DEFENDANTS IS UNCONSCIONABLE AND UNENFORCEABLE

39. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 through 38 of this Complaint as if

fully set forth herein.

40. The Declaratory Judgments Act, 28 2201, provides that in "a case of

actual controversy within its jurisdiction...any court of the United States, upon the filing of an

appropriate pleading, may declare the rights and other legal relations of any interested party

seeking such declaration, whether or not further relief is or could be sought."

41. An actual controversy exists between Plaintiffs and Defendants regarding

Defendants' failure to pay Plaintiffs wages and overtime wages to which they were entitled

under the FLSA, and this Court has subject matter jurisdiction over said controversy.

42. The arbitration agreement contains a mandatory arbitration provision and a waiver

of class and collective actions.

43. The arbitration provision is unconscionable under West Virginia law and

unenforceable because, inter alia:

(a) Plaintiffs were compelled to enter into the arbitration agreements in order to

work for Defendants and the arbitration provision is an unconscionable contract of

adhesion.

(b) The arbitration provision is silent or ambiguous with regard to whether

Plaintiffs and the similarly situated employees must pay a portion of the arbitrators' fees

and, consequently, places an undue and unconscionable financial burden on Plaintiffs and
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the similarly situated employees in any attempt to exercise and vindicate their legal rights

through a legal claim.

44. The arbitration provision further provides that the arbitrator may not preside over

any form of representative, class, or collective proceedings.

45. The provision restricting the arbitrator's authority to preside over representative,

class, or collective proceedings is unconscionable and unenforceable under West Virginia law,

46. The waiver of representative, class, or collective proceedings contained in the

arbitration provision violates the rights of employees to pursue work-related legal claims

together as provided by the National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. 157, and is, consequently,

unenforceable.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of similarly situated employees,

pray for the following relief:

(a) That this Court certify this action as an FLSA collective action and certify a class
of employees similarly situated to Plaintiffs Coberly and Stevens;

(b) That Plaintiffs Coberly and Stevens be designated as the collective class

representatives;

(c) That they and the certified class may have a trial by jury;

(d) That they and the certified class be awarded all damages provided by law,
including but not limited to, unpaid overtime wages;

(e) That they and the certified class be awarded liquidated damages as provided by
the FLSA;

(f) That they and the certified class be awarded attorneys' fees and costs;

(g) That this Court issue a declaration pursuant to the Declaratory Judgment
Act, 28 U.S.C. 2201, that the mandatory arbitration agreement and
waiver of representative, class and collective actions in the arbitration agreement
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between Plaintiffs and similarly situated employees and Defendants are

unconscionable and unenforceable;

(g) That they and the certified class be awarded such other relief as this Court may
deem as just and equitable.

ANNA COBERLY and JAMES M. STEVENS,

By Counsel

sl Mark Goldner
Mark Goldner, Esq. (WV State Bar No. 11286)
Maria W. Hughes, Esq. (WV State Bar No. 7298)
HUGHES 8z. GOLDNER, PLLC
10 Hale Street, Fifth Floor
Charleston, WV 25301
TEL: (304) 400-4816

FAX: (304) 205-7729

mark@wvemploymentrights.com
maria@wvemployrnentrights.corn
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